
 

(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 – 6 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

==================================================================== 

 

1. Commencement 

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meetings 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update – for information only  

2.04 Departmental Reports – for information only 

2.05 ARPA Utility Relief Funds Budget Amendment 

 

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

3.01 Waverly Pool Request for Assistance 

 Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA) 

 

4. Public Hearing – none  

  

5. Appointments  
5.01 Appointment to the Housing Oversight Board 

50.2 Nomination for Appointment to Board of Equalization 

5.03 Authority Alternate At-Large Position 

5.04 Appointment to the Department of Social Services Advisory Board Sussex Service  

 

6. Action Items  

6.01 Sheriff MDT Lease Agreement  

6.02 Sheriff Electronic Ticket Ordinance 

 

7. Citizens’ Comments  
 

8. Unfinished Business 
8.01 Solar Farm Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

8.02 Redistricting Mapping Update 

 

9. New Business - none 

  

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 



10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

 

11. Closed Session – none  

   

12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Regular Meeting, March 17, 2022 @ 6 p.m. 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Thursday, January 27, 2022 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Debbie P. Jones 

Wayne O. Jones 

Susan M. Seward 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

Steve White, Tie Breaker 

 

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator 

Jeff Gore, County Attorney 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Lisa Danuser, Solid Waste Manager 

G. Reid Foster, Public Safety 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

William Hagy, Director of Social Services 

William Jenkins, General Registrar 

Eric Johnson, Captain 

Kelly W. Moore, Director of Finance 

Michael Poarch, Planner 

Vincent L. Robertson, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

     Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

1.  Commencement  
 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

 

The January 27, 2022 rescheduled regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was 

called to order by Chair Seward. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Fly. 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

1.04  BOS Organizational Meeting for Calendar Year 2022 

 

Ms. Seward turned the meeting over to County Administrator Douglas 

 

a.  Election of Chairman for Calendar Year 2022 

 

County Administrator Douglas opened the floor for nominations for the Chairman for the Board 

of Supervisors for Calendar Year 2022. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. Jones, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors nominates Susan B. Seward for 

Chairman for Calendar Year 2022.   

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors closed nominations of said name of 

Susan B. Seward. 

 

Supervisor Fly – Aye                                   Supervisor Seward - Aye  

Supervisor D. Jones – Aye                           Supervisor Tyler – Absent during vote 

Supervisor W. Jones – Aye                           

 

Supervisor Seward is the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for Calendar Year 2022. 

 

County Administrator Douglas turned the meeting back over to the Chairman. 

 

b. Election of Vice Chairman for Calendar Year 2022 

 

Chairman Seward opened the floor for nominations for Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

for Calendar Year 2022. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors nominates Wayne O. Jones as Vice 

Chairman for Calendar Year 2022. 

 

Supervisor Fly – Aye                                   Supervisor Seward - Aye  

Supervisor D. Jones – Aye                           Supervisor Tyler – Absent during vote 

Supervisor W. Jones – Aye                           

 

Supervisor W. Jones is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for Calendar Year 2022. 

 

c.   Establishment of dates, times and place of regular meetings 

 

The Board of Supervisors regular meetings will remain the 3rd Thursday of each month at 6:00 

p.m. in the Sussex Judicial Center – General District Courtroom located at 15098 Courthouse 

Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884. 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

d.Adoption of Rules and Procedures 

 

There were no changes in the Rules and Procedures. 

 

Chairman Seward recommended the Finance and Personnel Committees remain as they are.  It 

was noted that the Personnel Committee only had two members.  It was stated that the new Board 

member (from vacant position) would be assigned to the Personnel Committee. 

 

1.05  Agenda Amendments 

 

Supervisor Fly requested to add under Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6.03 Lifestar Resolution.  

County Administrator Douglas requested to remove under Item 3. Recognition, Item 3.04a. Sussex 

County Youth and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA). 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Ms. Beverly Walkup was unable to be in attendance for 

Item 4. Public Hearing; however, she requested that the Board move forward with the Public 

Hearing, but not take action until the February Board meeting.  As a result, there would be no 4.02 

and 4.03 Action on Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance Amendments, respectfully. 

 

County Administrator Douglas requested to move under Item 6. Action Items, Item 6.01 Dell 

Computer Lease Agreement. 

 

1.05  Approval of Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the January 27, 2022 

rescheduled regular agenda inclusive of: (1) adding under Item 6. Action Items, as Item 6..03 

Lifestar Resolution; (2) removing under Item 3. Recognition, Item 3.04a.  Sussex County Youth 

and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA); (3) removing under Item 4. Public Hearing, Items 

4.02 and 4.03. Action on Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance Amendments, respectfully; 

and (4) removing under Item 6. Action Items, Item 6.01 Dell Computer Lease Agreement.  All 

Board members present voted aye. 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR W. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the following: (a) December 16, 2021 regular Meeting minutes; (b) the Approval of 

Warrants and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report; (d) Financial Update; and (e) Departmental 

Reports; and (3) Release of Burn Ban. All Board members present voted aye. 

 

Chairman Seward noted the Release of Burn Ban under the Consent Agenda due to having enough 

precipitation. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

3.01  FY21 Audit of Sussex County – Taylor Stover 

 

Mr. Taylor Stover, Audit Manager with Robinson, Farmer Cox was in attendance at the meeting 

and gave a brief review of the FY21 Final Audit Report.   

 

Mr. Stover stated that three opinions statements were issued.  Opinions on financial statements??,  

internal controls and federal order compliance.  All of which are modified opinions. 

 

The County has a $9 million general unassigned general fund balance.  The County’s tax collection 

percentage is 99.7% when including delinquent tax collections.  The County finished the year with 

$96,000 still in the CARES Act balance.  On June 30, 2021, the County received its first allocation 

of approximately $1.1 million in ARPA Funds. 

 

He stated that a management letter was issued to the County of recommendations or comments of 

area of improvement that has to be discussed.   

 

There was brief discussion of the Sheriff’s office expenditure policy updated to include invoices 

being turned over to the Finance Department that are not properly coded.  There was a discussion 

of credit cards.  Credit cards should only be used when going through the accounts payable policy 

can’t be used.  He suggests use according to the County policy.  He discussed Animal Services 

receipts turnover for cash money on a weekly basis.  There was discussion that the Department of 

Social Services is required to annually approve their continuity of operation plan which hasn’t 

been done since FY19.  There was discussion of special welfare accounts.  He stated that anytime 

you have an SSI dedicated account, a supplemental income account for individuals in special 

welfare, they are required to receive their portion of the interest accredited to their account which 

has not been done. There was a small variance in reconciliation of ledger with DSS and the 

Treasurer’s office.  It was recommended that the departments meet to correct. 

 

There were no findings. 

 

A copy of the representation/management letter was included in the Board packet.  The Audit 

Book was provided to the Board members. 

 

3.02  Introduction of Deputy County Administrator – David Conmy 

 

County Administrator Douglas introduced David Conmy as the new Deputy County 

Administrator, after beginning employment on January 10th.  His primary focus will be on 

economic development.  David brings a wide range of skills and experience to the position. 

 

A copy of David Conmy’s resume was included in the Board packet. 

 

3.03  Route 35/Route 40 Road Safety Assessment – Tommy Catlett 

 

Mr. Tommy Catlett, Resident Engineer for VDOT Franklin Residency was in attendance to present 

a recently completed road safety assessment (RSA) for the Jerusalem Road (VA Route 35) at 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Sussex Road (VA Route 40) intersection, including a recommendation to consider a modular 

roundabout.  

 

Mr. Catlett stated the intersection of Jerusalem Road (VA Route 35) at Sussex Road (VA Route 

40) is controlled by a static stop sign, flashing intersection beacons and overhead flashers.  The 

current speeds on these routes are 55 mph.  Consultants took counts which were consistent with 

VDOT’s historical counts—roughly 4,000 vehicles at intersection per day with approximately 

25% trucks.  A crash analysis was done from 2017 to 2020 for a total of 17 crashes, 65% angle 

crashes.   

 

Mr. Catlett discussed a short-term category of improvement at Jerusalem Road (VA Route 35) at 

Sussex Road (VA Route 40) intersection.  The short term category is comprised of improvements 

that could be implemented by local or state forces, which includes measures such as trimming 

foliage to improve visibility, replacing signage, adjustments to signal timings, modification, or 

upgrades to pavement markings, etc.  Installing solar power LED stop sign that comes on when a 

car approach was discussed. 

 

The intermediate term category consists of potential improvements that are candidates for funding 

under the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), some of which that may not be within 

VDOT’s ability to correct using existing manpower or funding sources.  A four-way stop was 

discussed. 

 

The long term safety improvements may be identified and documented; however, they are not the 

primary focus of this RSA.  Improvements in long-term category are generally more extensive and 

therefore are not normally good candidates for state/local forces or HSIP funding.  Improvements 

in the long-term category require more extensive planning and design before implementation can 

be considered.  These also typically involve environmental or right-of-way impacts.  A round about 

FHWA single lane to reduce traffic that causes injury and reduce delay was discussed. 

 

There was inquiry as to whether truck traffic was taken into consideration.   

 

Mr. Catlett stated that the presentation was provided for information and feedback at this time.  A 

letter of support would be good.  The process was a joint process.  Once the design and estimates 

are done, timing will need to be secured. 

 

He spoke briefly about the Princeton Road entrance.  

 

Road Safety Assessment for Jerusalem Plank Road and Sussex Road was included in the Board 

packet.    

 

Supervisor Tyler entered at 6:45 p.m. 

 

3.04  Potential Recreation Projects 

 

a. Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association  

 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

This item was removed and rescheduled for the February 17, 2022 regular Board meeting. 

 

b. Airfield 4-H Conference Center – Supervisor Fly 

 

Supervisor Fly stated that due to loss of business during the pandemic, there is an opportunity with 

the 4-H Center and Sussex County to use the facility and tie in as a County as a park and recreation 

facility for the County.  If contracted out, it will continue to be more private.  The staffing can 

serve and develop programming for the citizens and the adults in Sussex County.  The 4-H Center 

has 104 programs developed by different universities.  There are a huge range of programs and 

opportunities for the citizens.   

 

Supervisor Fly wants to know if the County is interested in securing a contract with 4-H Center 

before it’s contracted out.   

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that he had conversations with Southampton and Surry 

Counties regarding their interest.  Costs for use of facility and staff would be approximately 

$250,000 a year.   

 

Supervisor Tyler recommended forming a committee of recreation, school division, and citizens 

to come up with a plan to bring back to the Board. 

 

Supervisor Fly recommended form a Park and Recreation committee from the Board of 

Supervisors. 

 

Deputy County Administrator Conmy stated that he also reached out to the Cameron Foundation. 

 

There was a discussion of a pilot program.  County Administrator Douglas and Deputy County 

Administrator Conmy are to bring information back to the Board. 

 

4.  Public Hearing 
 

4.01    Solar Ordinance Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Ordinance Amendment 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Ms. Beverly Walkup, Planning Director, was unable to 

be in attendance.  The Public Hearing would be held to receive any comments; however, no 

action will be taken until February. 

 

In summary, County Administrator Douglas stated that the amendments restrict the size of the 

solar facility.  It sets a minimum and maximum size of a facility and protecs of farm land.   

 

Chairman Seward opened the Public Hearing. 

 

The following staff report was included in the Board packet:  

 

The Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors previously considered Comprehensive Plan 

and Zoning Ordinance amendments regarding solar energy and battery storage facilities as 



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

contained in the attached report prepared by Darren Coffey, AICP, The Berkley Group at a joint 

meeting on September 17, 2021.   

 

Since the meeting, staff worked with The Berkley Group and Crater Planning District Commission 

to develop a map showing prime agricultural lands in the County.  The map is contained in the 

proposed comprehensive plan modification document and may be referenced therein. 

 

Staff also worked with Mr. Coffey to provide the rationale for the 100-acre minimum as follows: 

1 MW of solar takes about 15-20 acres of land in Sussex County due to the environmental 

constraints on much of the land. Therefore, a 5 MW facility would probably have to be on 80-100 

acres or more.  Smaller facilities are exempt from the revenue options provided by the state, take 

as much time to process as a larger facility application, and fragment the established and preferred 

land use patterns of the county as stated in the comp plan.  The Board has stated that it does not 

want to consider smaller facilities for these reasons, therefore a larger minimum project size 

addresses all of those issues. 

 

The Planning Commission at its regular meeting on October 4, 2021, again considered the 

amendments and requested staff to bring back more information on the location of prime 

agricultural soils and the rationale for the 100-acre minimum.  

 

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning 

amendments on December 6, 2021.   

 

The Commission voted to recommend approval of the Comprehensive Plan amendment (8-1-1) 

adding the recommended criteria that solar and battery storage facilities be “located less than or 

equal to one (1) mile from a transmission line”. 

 

The Commission voted to recommend approval of the Zoning Ordinance amendment (9-0-1). 

 

Report by Darren Coffey, dated August 30, 2021; Resolution/Proposed Modifications to the 2004-

2005 Comprehensive Plan in Consideration of Solar and Battery Storage Facilities (December 7, 

2021); and, Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Article I, Sections 16.1, Definitions and Article 

XXIII, Solar and Battery Facilities were included in the Board packet. 

 

Chairman Seward closed the Public Hearing. 

 

Public comments were heard from John Jeremko and Willem Dalbotten of UEGI.COM. 

 

Board comments were heard from Chairman Seward. 

 

Chairman Seward closed the Public Hearing. 

 

No action was taken.  Ms. Beverly Walkup, Planning Director, will review all the 

changes/amendments at the February Board meeting.  

 

5.  Appointments  



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

5.01  Appointment to the Housing Oversight Board 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Tanisha Green submitted her letter of resignation from 

the Housing Oversight Board.  The purpose of the Board is to provide fair and equitable application 

oversight of the Pocahontas Community Improvement Grant, Phases I and II, and the Regional 

Urgent Needs Grant Program as required under the County’s contract with the funding agency, 

Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development.   

 

The criteria for Mrs. Green’s replacement is as follows:  Active member of community, already 

have an existing relationship with many of the neighbors, and having been an active participant in 

organizing the neighborhood during the Planning Grant process.  They should understand the 

intent of the program and be able to assist the County in communicating with project area residents 

to assure they fully understand the program.  

 

A copy of Ms. Tanisha Green’s resignation letter was included in the Board packet. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

5.02 Appointment to the Planning Commission 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the terms of Ms. Brenda Burgess, 205 West Main Street, 

and Mr. Roger King, Post Office Box 349, both of Waverly, Virginia 23890, are due to expire on 

the Planning Commission January 31, 2022.  Staff has contacted Ms. Burgess and Mr. King.  Ms. 

Burgess is unable to continue to serve.  Mr. King is willing to serve, if reappointed. 

 

Copies of Declining & Confirmation Letters and a list of the Planning Commission members 

were included in the Board packet. 
 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR D. JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reappoints Mr. Roger, Post 

Office Box 349, Waverly, Virginia 23890, to the Planning Commission with terms expiring 

January 31, 2026.  All Board members present voted aye.  

 

5.03.  Department of Social Services Advisory Board  

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that this item was tabled from previous Board of Supervisors 

regular meetings agenda. The Board discussed contacting members of the former DSS 

Administrative Board in regards to their interest in serving on the Advisory Board. There was also 

the Board’s general consensus to have representation from each district. A list of names was also 

provided by Mr. Hagy, the Director of Social Services. Three members—Stony Creek, Wakefield 

and Waverly Districts—were interested contingent upon further information provided. 

 

No action was taken.   

 

5.04  Nomination for Appointment to Board of Equalization 



  

 

9 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that this item has been tabled from previous meetings.  There 

were a number of individuals interested to consider. 
 

The four members currently serving on the Board of Equalization are: (1) Ms. Antoinette Jones, 

13174 Shands Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882; (2) Mr. Dennis Mason, 407 East Main Street, 

Wakefield, VA 23888; (3) Ms. Carla Mayes, 28237 Petersburg Road, Waverly, VA 23890; and, 

(4) Mr. Jerry Parham, 33117 Sussex Drive, Waverly, VA 23890. 

 
Appointments and qualifications were included in the Board packet. 

 

Staff recommends that the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment by 

the Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization. 
 

Virginia State §§ 58.1-3374 Appointments and 58.1-3374 Qualifications of members; vacancies 

were included in the Board packet. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

5.05  Appointment to Sussex Service Authority Alternate At-Large Position 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that this item has been on previous Board agendas.  Staff 

was advised by Mr. Frank Irving, of Sussex Service Authority, that there was a vacancy for an 

unexpired term on the Sussex Service Authority for an alternate in the At-Large position.   

 

The position is for any citizen who resides in Sussex County (prefer them to be in our service area, 

but not mandatory) and is not an elected official.  The position is currently held by Sam Harrison 

but he has moved out of Sussex County and is no longer eligible.  He will continue to serve until 

his replacement has been appointed.   

 

This position will serve through December 2022 at which time they can be renewed for another 

four-year term. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

6.  Action Items 

 

6.01 Dell Computer Lease Agreement 

 

This item was removed during agenda amendments. 

 

6.02 Request for Funds for Grocery Store Market Analysis 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that staff has been in discussion with Wakefield’s Great Valu 

Market ownership and the Town of Stony Creek about a potential expansion into the vacant 

grocery building in Stony Creek.  The Great Valu Market is strongly interested in expanding to 

that location but is requesting that the County or Town fund a grocery field study/market analysis 



  

 

10 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

that would justify locating a store in Stony Creek.  They have previously utilized and are 

recommending a consultant, ROIC Analytics, to complete the market analysis, at a cost up to 

$9,000.  The Town of Stony Creek has agreed to cover 25 percent of the study costs, approximately 

$2,250, and is requesting assistance from the county to fund the balance of this analysis. 

 

Staff recommends that up to $6,750 in ARPA funds be used (a budget amendment would be 

forthcoming at a future meeting) to complete the proposed market analysis, and that the County 

Administrator be authorized to execute a professional services master agreement with ROIC 

Analytics to complete this work. 

 

The ROIC Analytics Statement of Work for Grocery Field Study and Professional Services Master 

Agreement were included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves up to $6,750 in ARPA 

funds to be used to complete the proposed market analysis with the budget amendment at a future 

meeting, and that the County Administrator be authorized to execute a professional services master 

agreement with ROIC Analytics to complete this work.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

6.03 Lifestar Resolution 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that there are a resolution and an amendment to Lifestar 

services agreement with Lifestar EMS Contractor for consideration.  The resolution appoints 

Lifestar as the County’s emergency medical services provider for essentially the eastern part of 

the County.  Lifestar is essentially providing emergency medical service in this portion of the 

County.  Waverly Rescue volunteers.  They are just doing it with Waverly Rescue Squad 

ambulances which are housed at Waverly Rescue Squad.  The only thing that would change with 

this is the ambulances will be Lifestar ambulances.  They contract amendment is basic.  A $450 a 

day agreement is being added with Lifestar to provide two fully stocked ALS ambulances 24/7 

operating under Lifestar licensure.   

 

There was inquiry as to billing.  It was stated that Mr. Bryant was willing to do the billing and pay 

the County.  They will have to work on details.  

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the County has a legal obligation to provide nurse and 

medical services to its residence.  Waverly Rescue Squad has provided services for years for the 

eastern part of the County. Since 2016, the County has contracted with EMS ambulance services 

to provide 100% of the EMS staffing for the Waverly Rescue Squad which equates to a cost of 

approximately $700,000 a year.  Waverly Rescue Squad volunteers and does not run calls.  

Waverly Rescue Squad maintains the licensure, handle billing and maintain trucks—

administrative functions. 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Mr. Reid Foster, Sussex County’s Public Safety 

Coordinator, is charged with working with the various volunteer fire and rescue organizations to 

coordinate the provision of services within the County.  Under the new squad leadership in the last 

few months, the County’s relationship has deteriorated.  A good faith effort was made to work 



  

 

11 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

with the rescue squad to identify the issues.  Staff met with some of the Waverly Rescue Squad 

leadership in November to discuss various operational and communication concerns. He believes 

he made a good faith effort to develop a memorandum of understanding that outlined operations 

and procedures for addressing operational issues between Waverly Rescue Squad, Lifestar and the 

County.  There was a good faith effort to improve the overall communication and cooperation 

between the three entities.   

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that unfortunately communication and cooperation has not 

improved since the meeting.  It has gotten worse.  A couple days prior, Waverly leadership asked 

the Public Safety Coordinator to leave the property at the State EMS inspection at Waverly Rescue 

Squad.   On Wednesday, County staff met with Lifestar to discuss how things were going to move 

forward, in which Lifestar leadership voiced his concerns to County staff about working within a 

hostile work environment at Waverly Rescue Squad and the inability of Lifestar to retain 

employees and adequately meet the provisions of his contracts within the County because of these 

working conditions and restrictions of certain employees being allowed or not being allowed to 

work. 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the resolution switches the designated EMS provider in 

the eastern part of the County from Waverly Rescue Squad to Lifestar.  He stated that it does not 

shut the doors at Waverly Rescue Squad.  It maintains them as a secondary provider.  It allows 

their volunteers to support Lifestar on calls as they are available and or it allows the Rescue Squad 

to staff with volunteers as a back-up ambulance that can come and support when there are 

additional calls, if needed.     

 

The rates for the service will stay the same, $48.00 an hour with an additional $450 per day for 

each of the two ambulances.   

 

Mr. Frankie Bryant, Lifestar Ambulance Services, Inc., gave a brief overview.  He stated that EMS 

staffing across Virginia has decreased due to loss of classes and are constantly losing providers.  

He stated that if something doesn’t change within the next 60 days, they will not be able to provide 

service.  Willing to be working partners.  Situation is costing them personnel and will not be able 

to meet needs. 

  

Mr. Foster stated that he wanted to stress that this matter was urgent.  He wasn’t sure that in 60 

days that he would have a contract with Lifestar if something didn’t change that night.  They are 

prepared to move forward tonight.   

 

There were continued discussions of how to move forward with this matter.   

 

A copy of the resolution and Lifestar contract amendment agreement were provided to the Board 

members. 

 

Supervisor Fly recommended making the effective date, March 1, 2022.  Initially, Supervisor Tyler 

made motion, seconded by Supervisor D. Jones to adopt the resolution, effective March 1, 2022; 

however, he made a substitution motion changing the effective date to January 27, 2022. 

 



  

 

12 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR D. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the resolution appointing 

Lifestar Ambulance Service, Inc. as the county’s emergency medical services provider for certain 

portions of the county, to-wit: 

 

Whereas, the County is required by state law to either directly provide emergency medical 

services to its citizens or to contract for such services to be provided by licensed emergency 

services agencies; and 

 

Whereas, the County has been fulfilling this requirement by utilizing Waverly Rescue 

Squad, Inc. (“Waverly Rescue”) to provide emergency medical services to county citizens in 

certain portions of the County as set out herein; and  

 

Whereas, for many years the dedicated volunteers and agents of Waverly Rescue provided 

these vital services directly to citizens of the County; and 

 

Whereas, since October 2016, the County has been providing substantially all the funds for 

the actual provision of these services pursuant to a contract with Lifestar Ambulance Services, Inc. 

(“Lifestar”), while Waverly Rescue Squad, Inc. has reduced its role to billing and other 

administrative functions; and 

 

Whereas, to enhance coordination of services with the County, reduce administrative 

inefficiencies, and improve overall emergency medical services to citizens, the Board of 

Supervisors desires to no longer utilize Waverly Rescue for any related services, and to appoint 

Lifestar directly as the County’s provider of emergency medical services in all portions of the 

County previously served by Waverly Rescue, namely the “Waverly Rescue First Due Area” of 

the County; and 

 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that Lifestar 

Ambulance Service, Inc, a licensed provider of emergency medical services in the Commonwealth 

of Virginia, is hereby designated and appointed as the County’s provider of emergency medical 

services in the Waverly Rescue First Due Area of the County pursuant to the authority granted 

under Virginia Code Sections 32.1-111.4:3 and 32.1-111.4:7; and 

 

Be it further resolved that this designation shall be contingent upon Lifestar complying 

with all applicable state regulations and requirements and providing the County with a valid state 

license to perform such services in the County; and 

 

Be it further resolved that corresponding amendments to the October 2016 County Contract 

with Lifestar are hereby approved, reflecting the contents of this Resolution, including removing 

the references to Waverly Rescue, providing that the licensed provider shall be Lifestar in the 

Waverly Rescue First Due Area, as well as amending the contract to include an initial 3-year term 

with two optional 1 year renewal terms; and  

 

Be it further resolved that any and all prior Board or other County actions designating or 

approving Waverly Rescue as the County’s licensed provider of emergency medical services in 



  

 

13 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

the County are hereby repealed and rescinded and that the County Administrator shall forthwith 

notify Waverly Rescue, Lifestar, and appropriate state officials of the passage of this Resolution. 

 

Approved by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors and effective 27th day of February, 2022. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors D. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  Supervisor Fly 

Abstained:  Supervisor W. Jones 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated the second item is the amendment to the operations and 

management agreement for emergency medical services.  He noted one change recommended by 

Mr. Steve White, BOS Tie Breaker, at Amendment 3., at the end of paragraph E, after (ODEMSA), 

add the language Tidewater Emergency Council protocol.  

     

7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

 Lavern Ford (Stony Creek District) – Redistricting; travel to vote; transportation distance 

to vote for citizens. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

8.01   Voting District Mapping 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Mr. Alec Brebner, Executive Director of Crater 

Planning District Commission, was in attendance.  He stated that direction was needed from the 

Board on how to move forward to adjust for the present population and to review district mapping. 

 

He stated once the Board agreed on a consensual map and then they could move forward with 

advertising for a public hearing.   

 

Supervisor Tyler stated that he wanted to meet with Mr. Brebner before the Board moved forward 

with the map. 

 

Supervisor Fly recommends that the Board, as a whole, schedule a work session to review maps 

with a GIS specialist/expert who have software for 5, 6 or 7 districts.   

 

County Attorney Gore stated that the process now is to apply to the Virginia Attorney General for 

approval.  No more DOJ pre-clearance.  Will need to be done by March or April at the latest. 

 

Supervisor Tyler requested a copy of stipulation and conditions. He also recommended a 

committee to do a draft and bring back to the Board.  The committee will consist of Supervisors 

Fly, Tyler and W. Jones, the county administrator along with Mr. Bill Jenkins, the General 

Registrar, to sit in on the meeting.  The committee will meet at the Crater Planning District 

Commission in Petersburg, Virginia. 

 

9.  New Business 

 



  

 

14 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

9.01 Electronic Summons System Fee Ordinance 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that Sheriff Giles is requesting consideration of an ordinance 

that would allow for the assessment of an additional $5.00 as part of costs in each criminal or 

traffic case in the district or circuit courts of the county.  This revenue would be designated for the 

implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system.  In order to move forward, a 

public notice is required to be advertised that would allow for consideration of an ordinance.   

 

Sheriff Giles stated that this program will pay for itself. 

 

Staff recommends approval of a public notice to consider the electronic summons system 

ordinance at the February regular meeting, if the Board of Supervisors is in agreement to consider 

such an ordinance. 

 

A copy of the Public meeting notice and draft electronic summons system fee ordinance were 

included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County 

Administrator to move forward with advertising the public notice that will allow for consideration 

of an ordinance for the electronic summons systems fee.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 
 

10.01 Blackwater District – Be safe. 

 

10.02  Courthouse District – Treasurer’s Report. 

 

10.03  Henry District – none 

 

10.04  Stony Creek District – none 

 

10.05Wakefield District – none. 

 

10.06Waverly District – absent 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

There was no Closed Session. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

12.01 Adjournment 

 



  

 

15 | Page – Minutes of January 27, 2022 Rescheduled Regular Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR W. JONES and carried:  

RESOLVED that the January 27, 2022 rescheduled regular meeting of the Sussex County Board 

of Supervisors hereby adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Fly, D. Jones, W. Jones, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

12.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next regular Board of Supervisors meeting will be held on Thursday, February 17, 2022 at 6 

p.m. 



                       2.03

Highlight

Consent Agenda - Page 1



Consent Agenda - Page 2



Consent Agenda - Page 3



Consent Agenda - Page 4





Solid Waste Management 

Services  

   

 

                       

February 17, 2022 

Monthly Report 
 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 6 



 

Department of 

Social Services 

 

 

 

 

February 17, 2022 

Monthly Report 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 17 



Consent Agenda - Page 18



Consent Agenda - Page 19



Origin / Material Summary Report

Criteria: 01/01/2022 12:00 AM to 01/31/2022 11:59 PM

Business Unit Name: Atlantic Waste Disposal - S05136 (USA)
Origin Material Tons

DC Special Misc-Tons                                                                    509.53 

Origin Total                                                                    509.53 

DE MSWT                                                                    275.06 

DE Special Misc-Tons                                                                      61.47 

Origin Total                                                                    336.53 

MD POTW Sludge-Tons                                                                    411.49 

MD Sludge Indus-Tons                                                                      23.30 

MD SludgeIndus-Tons                                                                      20.40 

Origin Total                                                                    455.19 

NC CDTC                                                                      55.28 

NC Cont Soil Met-Tons                                                                1,477.34 

NC MSWT                                                                3,287.80 

NC Special Misc-Tons                                                                3,038.02 

Origin Total                                                                7,858.44 

NY MSWT                                                              52,164.29 

Origin Total                                                              52,164.29 

PA MSWT                                                                      47.42 

Origin Total                                                                      47.42 

SUSS BUS MSWT                                                                      46.42 

SUSS BUS Sludge Indus-Tons                                                                    689.30 

Origin Total                                                                    735.72 

SUSS RES MSWT                                                                    384.25 

Origin Total                                                                    384.25 

VA Auto Fluff-Tons                                                                1,443.11 

VA CDTC                                                                      80.44 

VA MSWT                                                              20,662.26 

VA OLCHT                                                                7,780.83 

VA SludgeIndus-Tons                                                                    691.72 

VA Special Misc-Tons                                                                1,057.71 

Origin Total                                                              31,716.07 

Totals                                                              94,207.44 

Consent Agenda - Page 7



 

Planning Department 
 

 

 

February 17, 2022 

Monthly Report 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 8 



 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 9 

 

Planning & Zoning Department 
Monthly Report for January 2022 

Michael Poarch, County Planner 

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration  

Current Developments 

 Site Plan Review for Waverly Solar LLC and Pit Crew LLC. 

 ESC Plan Review for Waverly RNG Project 
 

Sussex County Urgent Need (UNOS) Project 

 Seven (7) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including four (4) substantial 

reconstructions and three (3) rehabilitations.  

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project is close to completion. 

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project is under contract. 

 Two (2) substantial reconstructions are waiting for manufactured homes to be set-up on each site. 

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project has been negotiated down and pending contract signing.   

 Façade Improvements for two (2) businesses are waiting for a shipment of materials to start the work. 
 

Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project 

 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3) substantial 

reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations.   

 One (1) housing project has been negotiated down and pending contract signing.   

 Pending DHCD approval for a contract extension for a period of nine (9) months. The contract expired on 

January 22, 2022. 

 

Planning & Zoning 

 No Planning Commission meeting was held in the month of January. 

 
 Three (3) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved for January; one (1) for single family dwelling with a 

detached garage, one (1) for house addition, and one (1) for single family dwelling. 
 

 Two (2) new address assignments were issued for new residential construction on Railroad Bed Road and 
Henry Road for January.  

 

 

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Required Monthly Land Disturbance Report to DEQ are up-to-date. 

 Four (4) E&S projects are active with inspections being made within a two week period or after each significant 

rainfall event. 



 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 10 

Planning & Zoning Department 

Monthly Report for December 2021 
Michael Poarch, County Planner 

Community Development/Special Programs Grant Administration  

Current Developments 

 The Fairfield Inn is open.  

 Site Plan Review for Waverly Solar LLC and Pit Crew LLC are underway. 
 

Sussex County Urgent Need (UNOS) Project 

 Seven (7) housing projects have been completed under the UNOS project, including four (4) substantial 

reconstructions and three (3) rehabilitations.  

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project has work underway with 85% completion. 

 One (1) housing rehabilitation project is under contract. 

 Two (2) substantial reconstructions are under contract with emergency procurement. 

 One (1) housing project has been negotiated down and pending contract signing.   

 Façade Improvements for two (2) businesses have been contracted under emergency and sole source 

procurement with Binswanger Glass to install storefront glass and should greatly improve the street appeal 

from Main Street. 
 

Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project 

 Five (5) housing projects have been completed under the Pocahontas project, including three (3) substantial 

reconstructions and two (2) rehabilitations.   

 One (1) housing project has been negotiated down and pending contract signing.   

 Approach on proposed alternatives for street improvements, including streetlights, sidewalks, and connector 

road. 

 

Planning & Zoning 

 The Planning Commission considered the following amendments at its December meeting: 

o Comprehensive Plan Amendment for Solar Facilities. The Planning Commission voted to recommend 

approval of the amendment subject to the addition of solar facilities being less than or equal to (1) one 

mile from a transmission line. 

o Zoning Ordinance Amendment for Solar Facilities. The Planning Commission voted to recommend 

approval of the amendment. 

 
 Seven (7) Zoning Applications were reviewed and approved for December; one (1) for garage, one (1) for ground 

mount solar for single-family residence, two (2) for single family dwellings, one (1) for a group home, one (1) 
for an antenna upgrade to existing tower, and one (1) for two additional self-storage buildings at Pinehaven on 
Rt. 301 in Jarratt. 



 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 11 

 
 One (1) new address assignment was issued for new residential construction on Harrell Road for December.  

 

 
 

Erosion & Sediment Control 

 Required Monthly Land Disturbance Reports to DEQ are up-to-date. 

 Four (4) E&S projects are active with inspections being made within a two-week period or after each 

significant rainfall event. 



BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS  

DEPARTMENT 

   February 17, 2022 

Monthly Report 

Consent Agenda – Page 12  

Building Department 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Building department                                                                                    County of Sussex, Virginia   

MATT WESTHEIMER                                                                                                                                         P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884 

building official                                                                                                                                                      Fax (434) 246-8259 

(434) 246-4390  

 

 

                                                     Sussexcountyva.gov                                   Consent Agenda – Page 13 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  February 7, 2022 

 

TO:  Richard Douglas, County Administrator  

     

FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official        

 

SUBJECT: January 2022 - Monthly Report 

 

 

Please accept this as the January 2022 update for the Building Department.   

  

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 

 January 2022 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

12 15 6 11 97 $1,424,373.00 $8,184.96 

 

 January 2021 
 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

7 7 2 6 33 $405,412.00 $4,600.38 

 

 January 2022 – December 2022 (Yearly totals) 

 

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

12 15 6 11 97 $1,424,373.00 $8,184.96 

 

Inspections completed within 24 hours For January 100% 

Plans reviewed within 10 business days For January 100% 

 

 



 

Sheriff’s Department 
 

                     

 

February 17, 2022 

Monthly Report  
 
 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 14  



Consent Agenda - Page 15





BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Consent #2.05 
 
Subject:    ARPA Utility Relief Funds Budget Amendment 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   Attached for your consideration is a budget amendment that accounts for funds 
received on behalf of and to be distributed to the Sussex Service Authority and the Town of 
Waverly, related to the ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Assistance Program through the Virginia 
Department of Housing and Community Development.  $32,522.95 was received for the Town of 
Waverly, and $50,953.77 was received for the Sussex Service Authority.  For your information, 
the award letters and fiscal agent MOU with the Town of Waverly and Sussex Service Authority 
are attached.  
 
 
Attachment:    Budget amendment; ARPA SLFRF Municipal Assistance Locality Authority Fiscal 
Agent MOUs; funding award letters 
   
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:     Staff recommends approval of budget amendment allowing for pass through of ARPA 
utility funds to the Town of Waverly and Sussex Service Authority 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
             

             

              

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 

                                            
 Consent Agenda – Page 20 



 
October 29, 2021 

VIA EMAIL 
Richard Douglas 
County Administrator 
Sussex County/Sussex Service Authority/Town of Waverly 
 
Re:  Award Letter, Guidance, and Required Certification and Comparison Analysis for COVID-19 ARPA 
SLFRF Municipal Utility Assistance Program 

Dear Richard Douglas: 

On behalf of Governor Northam, it gives me great pleasure to inform you that Sussex County/Sussex 
Service Authority/Town of Waverly has been awarded $32,522.95 in federal State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds (SLFRF) through the American Recovery Plan Act (ARPA) for the COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF 
Municipal Utility Assistance Program. Your award shall be used to directly assist residential municipal 
utility customers of Sussex County/Sussex Service Authority/Town of Waverly with arrearages greater 
than 60 days for the time period between March 12, 2020, and August 31, 2021. This funding is being 
provided under CFDA 21.027 – Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF). 

Please read the additional program guidance included with this letter carefully before proceeding with 
additional steps. Given the tight timeline for utilization of these funds and to receiving funds in an 
expedited manner, you must return the attached forms through a web portal. You are required to partner 
with a city or county to act as the fiscal agent to receive the funds from the Department of Accounts 
(DOA). The city or county will then forward funds to the municipal utility to apply to eligible residential 
utility customer accounts. In order to pre-qualify your eligible residential utility customer accounts and 
apply relief automatically, you will need to complete the Utility Arrearage Analysis in Appendix A. Once 
the project is complete, DOA will follow up regarding project outcomes and compliance. It is incumbent 
on Sussex County/Sussex Service Authority/Town of Waverly and the partnering city or county to ensure 
project expenses are properly documented and verified in case of audit. 

For questions contact DHCD staff member David Conmy at utility@dhcd.virginia.gov.  

Sincerely, 
 
 
Erik Johnston 
Director, Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development 
 
CC:  David Von Moll, Comptroller, Department of Accounts 
Encl:  COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Assistance Program: Guidance and Required Certification; 
Appendix A: Utility Arrearage Analysis to Substantiate Residential Customer Pre- Qualification; and 
Frequently Asked Questions 

mailto:utility@dhcd.virginia.gov
Consent Agenda - Page 21



 

COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF MUNICIPAL UTILITY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM: 

Guidance and Required Certification 

Based on the response that the Virginia State Corporation Commission (SCC) received from your utility 
system in the Application for Utility Assistance Funds (Municipal Utilities), the SCC has determined your 
award amount which is reflected in your award letter. Accordingly, the award letter, guidance, and 
required certification will serve as the next steps in facilitating this program. 

Pre-Qualification & Eligibility 

This program is funded through the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) of the American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA). One of the most important elements of ARPA federal guidance as it relates to this new 
Utility Assistance program is the ability to pre-qualify certain populations for eligibility rather than 
requiring individual customer applications/attestations. It is a best practice to pre-qualify groups and 
populations with relief programs as the customers with the lowest incomes and largest impacts from 
COVID-19 are least likely to provide customer attestations to any utility with which they have debt. This 
policy decision that is authorized in the federal guidelines is critical to ensure quick and equitable access 
to relief for residential customers negatively impacted by the pandemic.  

This guidance supports the Commonwealth’s determination as a recipient that for this SLFRF utility relief 
program that the population group of residential customers with arrearages over 60 days as of August 31, 
2021, are households that experienced a negative economic impact due to COVID-19, which is determined 
by these households having an unpaid arrearage greater than 60 days during the pandemic. Unpaid utility 
arrearages demonstrate housing insecurity for this population group which Treasury's 7-19-2021 FAQ 
demonstrates negative economic impacts from the pandemic (see question 2.17, Pages 9 through 11). 
Accordingly, the Commonwealth has determined that individual customer attestations are not required 
for this program once a utility analysis is provided. 

Only residential customers are eligible for this utility assistance. Municipal utilities shall pay the full 
amount of arrearages owed by eligible residential customers; however, funding may be limited and may 
not fully address the eligible arrearages for which your utility system applied. Therefore, utility systems 
are required to proportionately distribute their award to the population/group of all residential utility 
customers that are 60+ days in arrears as of August 31, 2021. 

Because this program does not require customer attestation, 100% of your award amount must be 
directed to assisting eligible residential utility customers. Utilization of your award amount for direct 
administrative costs is prohibited. Utilities must ensure residential customers eligible for this relief have 
the funding credited to their account as soon as possible and must reflect this relief on the soonest 
billing statement possible given the specific billing system utilized by the utility. Should the application 
of any assistance render a customer due a balance necessitating a cash refund payable to the customer, 
such assistance shall be proportionally reduced as to achieve a zero balance. 

Management of Award Funds 

Upon receipt of any funds, utilities shall maintain separate ARPA COVID-19 Utility Assistance Funds and 
record direct assistance payments to residential customers on their books in accordance with applicable 
accounting standards. Utilities may not direct any funds provided in this paragraph to new deposits, down 
payments, fees, late fees, interest charges, or penalties. 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRPFAQ.pdf
Consent Agenda - Page 22



 

Your award amount must be disbursed through a partnering county or city that will serve as the fiscal 
agent with the Department of Accounts (DOA) disbursing funds and having responsibility for sub-recipient 
monitoring.  Consequently, municipal utility systems, especially those that are not directly managed by a 
city or a county, will need to partner with a city or county to serve as the fiscal agent for this program. 
Cities and counties may serve as the fiscal agent for more than one municipal utility system. In order to 
receive your funding for this program, the chief administrative officer for the partnering city or county 
and the authorized official representing the municipal utility will be required to certify their respective 
organization’s participation in this program and its adherence to all associated federal ARPA SLFRF 
guidance and regulations. A standard certification for this program requiring signatures from both officials 
on behalf of their respective organizations has been included near the end of this document. 

Program Certification & Compliance 

The SCC has calculated the proportional share of available funding for each municipal utility system that 
applied by the SCC’s application deadline. This information was forwarded to DHCD, which is facilitating 
the award letter and certification process for municipal utilities and their partnering city or county. 

In order to receive the ARPA SLFRF funding amount calculated by SCC, each city and county and their 
partner municipal utility system(s) must complete a certification form (at the end of this document).  The 
certification form must be signed by the chief administrative officer for the city or county and the 
authorized official representing the municipal utility partner.  In the event more than one municipal utility 
partners with a city or county, a separate certification will be needed for each partnership. 

These certifications will be accepted by DHCD bi-weekly based on the following pre-determined schedule:

• November 5, 2021 
• November 19, 2021 
• December 3, 2021 
• December 17, 2021 

• January 7, 2022 
• *COB Friday, January 21, 2022 –

Certification Final Deadline

 

*January 21, 2022, will be the last date DHCD will accept certifications from awarded utilities. Any 
municipal utility that does not submit their certification by this date will forfeit their award and the 
funds will be used by the Commonwealth for other purposes in alignment with ARPA. 

Upon receipt of bi-weekly certifications from DHCD, DOA will process distributions to cities and counties 
– including those serving as fiscal agents on behalf of towns, authorities, and other regional level utilities 
– on a monthly basis. 

The certification establishes that the awarded municipal utility and their city or county fiscal agent will 
abide by U.S. Treasury guidance and other regulatory matters concerning the use of ARPA SLFRF. The 
intent is for this allocation to pass through the county or city directly to the municipal utility to serve 
eligible municipal utility customers. The municipal utility as the customer utility relief program operator 
should develop a sub-agreement with the county or city fiscal agent assuring the city or county fiscal agent 
that the municipal utility will be responsible for compliance with state and federal law. 

Upon receipt by DHCD of a complete and accurate certification form from the county/city and municipal 
utility, the Department of Accounts (DOA) will then distribute funds directly to cities and counties, which 
will serve as the fiscal agent on behalf of their partner municipal utility(ies). DOA will also be the lead state 
agency working with the city or county and their partnered utility system(s) on monitoring to ensure 

Consent Agenda - Page 23



 

 

 

compliance with the program and federal guidelines.  

Please note that approval of an allocation for purposes of this utility assistance program does not 
represent any assurance, legal or otherwise, that the approved project complies with all federal 
guidelines related to the use of these funds. Cities and counties in addition to their partner municipal 
utility(ies) are strongly encouraged to consult their legal counsel prior to expending the federal ARPA 
Fiscal Recovery Funds that have been awarded through this program. Applicants are recommended to 
read and understand the federal guidance and the frequently asked questions can be obtained at the 
following links: 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-05-17/pdf/2021-10283.pdf 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRPFAQ.pdf 

This information is routinely updated, so guidance may have changed since you last consulted it. 

Compliance with the federal guidance is the responsibility of the city or county submitting the application 
on behalf of a municipal utility and failure to do so could result in disallowed expenses requiring 
repayment of the associated funds to the federal government. If the city or county fails to repay any funds 
spent for non-qualifying expenses on behalf of a municipal utility as required by the federal government, 
the State Comptroller will recover such amounts from future state payments to the locality via the State 
Aid Intercept Program. Consequently, cities and counties are encouraged to develop agreements or 
memorandums of understanding (MOU) with their partner municipal utility system(s) to indemnify cities 
and counties in the event the municipal utility system does not adhere to U.S. Treasury guidelines and 
consequently subjects the city or county to such State Aid Intercept action(s).  

Further, the State Comptroller’s office (DOA) has subrecipient monitoring responsibilities that will 
necessitate evaluation and additional correspondence with cities and counties regarding the use of funds. 
Cities and counties are encouraged to develop MOUs that will help establish clarity concerning 
responsibility and accountability among all parties regarding this requirement. 

Please note that the certification statement includes an acknowledgment that recipients may not receive 
reimbursement or recipients may be required to return funds to the federal government if it is determined 
that those funds were spent for purposes that do not qualify. It is important to understand that the burden 
of ensuring that all ARPA Fiscal Recovery Funds are spent for qualifying purposes falls to the city or county 
working on behalf of the municipal utility. Again, cities and counties are encouraged to develop MOUs 
that will help establish clarity concerning responsibility and accountability among all parties regarding this 
requirement. 

Awardees are responsible for maintaining all necessary documentation to ensure compliance with the 
federal requirements. The State Comptroller is responsible for all sub-recipient monitoring and may 
require additional information in the future from each city or county and/or their partner municipal utility 
system(s) to address that responsibility. 

The certification form contains more specific details on the responsibilities of the city/county and 
partnered municipal utility. The signed certification form should be submitted to DHCD through the 
following web portal according to the aforementioned pre-determined schedule:  

http://s.alchemer.com/s3/COVID-19-ARPA-SLFRF-Municipal-Utility-Relief-Program 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2021-05-17/pdf/2021-10283.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRPFAQ.pdf
http://s.alchemer.com/s3/COVID-19-ARPA-SLFRF-Municipal-Utility-Relief-Program
Consent Agenda - Page 24



 

 

 

If you have any questions regarding the appropriate use of ARPA SLFRF, please refer to the U.S. Treasury 
Website and guidance linked above. For questions about this process or technical questions about the 
certification form or the distribution of the funds, please first refer to the FAQ documents provided and 
then send unresolved inquiries to: utility@dhcd.virginia.gov  

 

  

mailto:utility@dhcd.virginia.gov
Consent Agenda - Page 25



State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Certification Form Page 1 

 

 

 

(Please replace the yellow highlighted sections with your information in the Certification and 
Certification Addendum) 

Certification: 

CERTIFICATION FOR USE OF STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS 

by 

(CITY OR COUNTY NAME) 

on behalf of 

(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) 

We, the undersigned, represent (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) and are working in partnership with 
(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) (the utility), and we certify that: 

1. On behalf of (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME), (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) is requesting the allotment 
of funding from the Commonwealth of Virginia’s share of the State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Funds pursuant to section 602 of the Social Security Act, as added by section 9901 of the 
American Rescue Plan Act, Pub. L. No. 117-2 (Mar. 11, 2021) and appropriated in Item 479.20, 
Chapter 1, 2021 Acts of Assembly, Special Session II. 

2. We understand that the Commonwealth of Virginia will rely on this certification as a material 
representation for distributing State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds to (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) 
on behalf of (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME). 

3. We understand that it is our responsibility to ensure that funds are distributed by (CITY OR 
COUNTY NAME)’s to  (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) for the approved uses of the State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery funds provided under section 602 of the Social Security Act will be used only to 
cover those costs that: 

a. are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to 
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); or otherwise adhere to official federal guidance 
issued or that will be issued regarding what constitutes an eligible expenditure; and 

b. fulfill the purposes as appropriated by the General Assembly in Paragraphs B.1 and B.2 of 
Item 479.20, Chapter 1, 2021 Acts of Assembly, Special Session II. 

4. We understand that funds provided pursuant to this certification are for necessary obligations 
incurred within the eligible program period for customer arrearages as of August 31, 2021, and 
must be expended to cover such obligations no later than February 28, 2022; and that any funds 
that are not obligated on or before February 28, 2022, by (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) and 
(MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME), must be returned to Commonwealth of Virginia no later than 
March 31, 2022. 

5. We understand that (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) on behalf of (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) will not 
be eligible to receive funding after the final certification deadline of January 21, 2022, from State 
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds and (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) may not commit to any such 
expenditures, pay any related expenses, or provide any such services from within existing 
resources not otherwise designated for such expenditures unless authorized by the General 

Consent Agenda - Page 26



State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Certification Form Page 2 

 

 

 

Assembly and the Governor in a future appropriation act. We further understand that after the 
State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds are expended, the program and related services will end at 
that time unless other fund sources have been appropriated for those purposes. 

6. We understand that expenditure of the State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds provided pursuant 
to this certification must adhere to official federal guidance issued or that will be issued 
regarding what constitutes a necessary and qualifying expenditure. Any State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery funds that cannot be expended by (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) in a manner that 
adheres to official federal guidance shall be returned to the Commonwealth of Virginia so that it 
may be reprogrammed or returned to the federal government. I understand that any funds 
spent in violation of federal guidance may be subject to repayment by (CITY OR COUNTY NAME). 

1. We understand that (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) and (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) are responsible for 
retaining documentation of all uses of the State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds, including but not 
limited to contracts, MOUs, past due account ledgers, and/or grant award documents. Such 
documentation shall be produced upon request. 

2. We understand that (CITY OR COUNTY NAME) and (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) are responsible for 
maintaining proper accounting records to segregate these State and Local Fiscal Recovery expenditures 
from those supported by other fund sources and that all such records will be subject to audit. 

3. We agree to follow and fully participate in reporting requirements issued by the Department of 
Accounts for the purposes of ensuring the Commonwealths’ compliance with federal reporting 
guidance for State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds. 

4. We understand that State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds provided pursuant to this certification must 
be used for a qualifying purpose as stated in federal law and guidance and (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) 
may not identify this qualifying category as revenue replacement unless prior permission has been 
granted by the Governor pursuant to Paragraph B.3.a of Chapter 1, 2021 Acts of Assembly, Special 
Session II. 

5. We understand that any State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds received pursuant to this certification 
cannot be used for expenditures for which (MUNICIPAL UTILITY NAME) has received from any other 
emergency COVID-19 supplemental funding (whether state, federal, or private in nature) for that same 
expense nor may State and Local Fiscal Recovery funds be used for purposes of matching other federal 
funds unless specifically authorized by federal statute, regulation, or guideline. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda - Page 27



State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Certification Form Page 3 

 

 

 

We certify that I have read the above certifications and my statements contained herein are true and 
correct to the best of our knowledge. 

 

City or County Chief Administrative Officer (CAO)  Authorized Official Representing Municipal 
Utility Allocated Funds by SCC 

Name of City or County: Name of Municipal Utility: 

Printed Name of CAO: 

 

Printed Name of Municipal Utility Official: 

 

Signature: Signature: 

Title: 

 

Title: 

 

Date: Date: 

 

Please provide city/county DUNS number:__________________________  

Please provide municipal utility DUNS number: ______________________ 

  

Consent Agenda - Page 28



State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Certification Form Page 4 

 

 

Certification Addendum 

Federal Requirements for information to be included in agreement between county/city and 
municipal utility 

§200.332   Requirements for pass-through entities. 

All pass-through entities must: 

(a) Ensure that every subaward is clearly identified to the subrecipient as a subaward and includes 
the following information at the time of the subaward and if any of these data elements change, include 
the changes in subsequent subaward modification. When some of this information is not available, the 
pass-through entity must provide the best information available to describe the Federal award and 
subaward. Required information includes: 

(1) Federal award identification. (Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (ARPA SLFRF), 
ALN 21.027.) 

(i) Subrecipient name (which must match the name associated with its unique entity identifier); 
(Name of City or County) 

(ii) Subrecipient's unique entity identifier; (City or County DUNS number)  

 (iii) Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date; (October 29, 2021, and March 31, 2022, 
deadline to return funds) 

(iv) Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date; (October 29, 2021, and March 31, 2022, deadline 
to return funds) 

(v) Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action by the pass-through entity to the 
subrecipient; $32,522.95 

(vi) Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient by the pass-through entity 
including the current financial obligation; $32,522.95 

(vii) Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the subrecipient by the pass-through entity; 
$32,522.95 

(viii) Federal award project description, as required to be responsive to the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA); (ARPA SLFRF: Municipal Utility Relief Program to Assist 
Residential Customers) 

(ix) Name of Federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, and contact information for awarding 
official of the Pass-through entity; (U.S. Treasury Department awarding agency / Commonwealth of 
Virginia pass-through entity / Contact for Pass-through Entity: Erik Johnston, Director, VA Department of 
Housing and Community Development, 600 East Main Street, Suite 300, Richmond, VA 23219, (804) 371-
7000) 

Consent Agenda - Page 29



State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Certification Form Page 5 

 

 

(x) Assistance Listings number and Title; the pass-through entity must identify the dollar amount 
made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number at time of disbursement; 
(CFDA Number and Title are 21.027, Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds.) 

(xi) Identification of whether the award is R&D; and (This is not R&D award) 

(xii) Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged) per 
§200.414. (No indirect costs can be charged by county/city or municipal utility) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda - Page 30



COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Relief Program 
Certification Addendum 

Appendix A: Utility Arrearage Analysis to Substantiate Residential Customer Pre- Qualification 
 

 

In order for the Commonwealth to authorize pre-qualification of the municipal utility’s residential 
customer population impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic (i.e., residential customers with 60+ day 
arrearages as of August 31, 2021), by municipal utilities participating in the COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF 
Municipal Utility Relief Program, each awarded municipal utility is required to demonstrate that the 
program population is experiencing negative economic impacts as a result of the pandemic. Pre-
qualification is based on guidance from the U.S. Treasury indicating that it is acceptable to demonstrate 
that households receiving assistance are within a population that experienced a negative economic impact 
and endorsing use of categories of populations for program implementation purposes (e.g., populations 
that have experienced unemployment, have experienced increased housing or food insecurity, or are low- 
or moderate-income). Consistent with the population-based approach to identifying negative economic 
impacts, in the context of the Municipal Utility Relief Program the Commonwealth is requiring each 
municipal utility to answer one of the following comparative questions to demonstrate that 60+ day 
residential customer population arrearages have been negatively impacted as compared to the program 
population’s status prior to the pandemic. The following data backed analysis  demonstrating negative 
economic impacts of the pandemic on the basis of increased residential customer population arrearages 
under either comparison test will authorize the municipal utility’s residential customer population group 
to be eligible without the need for individual customer attestations. All municipal utilities must complete 
this analysis. If the analysis demonstrates the negative economic impacts, the municipal utility will be 
required to pre-qualify their program population and provide this assistance to this entire population 
group without individual customer attestations. Municipal utilities, whose  analysis does not prequalify 
the entire population group will be required to collect individual customer attestations.  Utilities must 
submit with this Appendix accounting data supporting the selected option.    

1. Comparison 1 (Accounts Receivable Comparison). Please provide the following or certify that 
the utility has the following: 

a. As of 2-29-2020 [or a billing cycle ended prior to March 1, 2020]                                         
i. Total Accounts Receivable Arrearage Balance / Annual Virginia jurisdictional 

Operating Revenues. Answer: ____________________ 
b. As of 8-31-2021 [or a billing cycle ended prior to September 1, 2021] 

i. Total Accounts Receivable Arrearage Balance plus CRF received in 2020 / Annual 
Virginia jurisdictional Operating Revenues. Answer: ____________________ 

c. Is 1.a. is less than 1.b.?  Answer: ____________________ (If YES, the municipal utility’s 
residential customer population meets the requirements for residential customer 
population pre-qualification.)  

OR 

2. Comparison 2 (Arrearage Dollar Value Comparison) 
a. What is the dollar value of the municipal utility’s total 60+ day residential utility customer 

arrearages as of 8-31-2021 plus previously paid utility relief during the pandemic (e.g., 
CRF Municipal Utility Relief already paid or other utility relief paid that demonstrates the 
higher total arrearages that would otherwise be present)? Please note this figure can also 

Consent Agenda - Page 31



COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Relief Program 
Certification Addendum 

Appendix A: Utility Arrearage Analysis to Substantiate Residential Customer Pre- Qualification 
 

 

be provided without including the additional utility relief provided during the pandemic.  
Answer: ____________________ 

b. What is the dollar value of the 1, 2, 3, 4 or 5 year average (circle one as applicable) of total 
60+ day residential utility customer arrearages in the municipal utility’s most recent fiscal 
year(s) that ended pre-pandemic (i.e., before March 1, 2020).  Answer: 
____________________ 

c. Is 2.a. is greater than 2.b.?  Answer: ____________________ (If YES, the municipal 
utility’s residential customer population meets the requirements for residential customer 
population pre-qualification.)  

OR 
3. Comparison 3 (Percent of Customer Base Comparison) 

a. What is the percent of the municipal utility’s residential utility customer accounts with 
60+ day arrearages out of all municipal utility customer accounts as of 8-31-2021?  
Answer: ____________________ 

b. What is the percent of the municipal utility’s residential utility customer accounts with 
60+ day arrearages out of all municipal utility customer accounts as of 3-1-2020 (or as of 
the end of the most recent fiscal year that ended prior to 3-1-2020)? Answer: 
____________________ 

c. Is 3.a. is greater than 3.b.? Answer: ____________________ (If YES, the municipal utility’s 
residential customer population meets the requirements for residential customer 
population pre-qualification.)  

 

For municipal utilities that are unable to complete Comparison 1, Comparison 2, or Comparison 3 but still 
think they could otherwise demonstrate their program population is experiencing negative economic 
impacts as a result of the pandemic compared to pre-pandemic times, please contact DHCD staff to discuss 
potential alternative means for computing and demonstrating such a comparison. 

Consent Agenda - Page 32



COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Relief Program 
Frequently Asked Questions 

 

 

CARES Act 

1. Do we still need to send back the remaining funds (CARES Act) that were originally allocated by 
December 1, 2021? 

a. Yes. Please coordinate with your city/county fiscal agent (if applicable) and reach out to 
the Virginia Department of Accounts (DOA) for additional technical questions on this 
matter: complianceoversight@doa.virginia.gov. A memo from the DOA was circulated to 
every city and county on October 18, 2021, that contains instructions on how to return 
these funds, so please reach out to your city or county chief administrative officer for 
more information. 

2. How does this relate to the previous CARES Act program?  
a. The biggest distinctions with this program compared to the past program are: 

i. Municipal utilities can pre-qualify their residential customers, so individual 
customer attestations are not necessary. 

ii. Only available for residential municipal utility customers with 60+ day 
arrearages between March 12, 2020, and August 31, 2021. 
 

Administration and Timing 

1. For the pre-qualification calculation, if we are not able to generate an August 31, 2021, detail 
listing of only residential account balances, should we then use all balances, including 
commercial, and then apply an estimated % of residential balances as a total of all balances? 

a. We suggest each utility produce whatever estimate most closely answers the question 
of August 31, 2021, residential 60+ day arrearages. For additional documentation, we 
suggest including the methodology you used for producing your calculation for your 
internal records in the case of an audit. 

2. Once a municipality goes through this process and certifies is there an estimate on when a 
locality would receive the funds? 

a. DHCD will process certifications that it receives from awarded municipal utilities on a bi-
weekly basis. The Virginia Department of Accounts (DOA) will then process these bi-
weekly certifications at the end of each month. It normally takes 3 to 5 business days for 
DOA funds to be deposited. 

3. How long will we have to allocate these funds if approved? 
a. Awarded municipal utilities in coordination with their partner city/county fiscal agent 

will need to return unspent funds to the Commonwealth no later than March 31, 2022. 
Any municipal utility and/or partner city/county fiscal agent that believes it will be 
unable to meet this deadline should contact the Virginia Department of Housing and 
Community Development (DHCD) as soon as possible. 

 
Covered Costs and Time Periods 

1. What type of utilities are covered? 
a. Eligible municipal utilities include water, waste water, gas, and electricity. 

2. Our utility bill includes services other than water and sewer (e.g. stormwater, refuse, taxes, 
administrative fees). Is awarded money for the SLFRF Utility Relief Program limited to water and 

mailto:complianceoversight@doa.virginia.gov
Consent Agenda - Page 33



COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Relief Program 
Frequently Asked Questions 

 

 

sewer only or is the municipal utility allowed to pay the customer’s entire arrearage for eligible 
periods? 

a. Awarded funding is for the purpose of water, sewer, gas, and electricity only. However, 
we understand that many utility systems operate an accounting system that cannot 
isolate these types of services when applying relief. We recommend documenting the 
relief provided after you receive your award, so that these amounts are tracked in some 
way with the purpose of ensuring that the net effect can be neutralized in some way. 

3. What arrearage dates are covered for this program? 
a. March 12, 2020, through August 31, 2021. 

4. Is the arrears specifically for residential accounts 60+ days behind using a bill date of 3/12/20 or 
the due date 3/12/20? 

a. Because the relief is being provided to assist residential utility customers who may have 
experienced an economic hardship, you may provide relief to accounts 60+ days using a 
due date of 3/12/2020. It is certainly possible that there are eligible residential 
customers who became unable to pay a utility bill covering a period of time that 
occurred just before the pandemic because of an economic hardship that occurred at 
the very beginning of the pandemic. 

5. What do municipalities do between date of application and date of grant as it relates to 
customers who may continue to pay down their eligible arrearage balances? 

a. It is possible that utilities could receive payments from residential customers for eligible 
arrearages between the date of your application and the date of receiving your award. 
In this scenario, utilities could instead provide a higher proportion of relief to their 
remaining residential utility customers who still have qualified arrearages as of 
8/31/2021. We are not expecting that utilities will receive 100% of their requested 
amount, but this could at least allow for greater assistance to your remaining eligible 
residential utility customer accounts. Additional guidance suggests that relief should be 
provided to your residential utility customers by (i) establishing each residential 
customer's percentage of arrearages over 60 Days to total municipal utility residential 
arrearages over 60 Days, and (ii) applying that percentage to total ARPA Fund dollars 
received by the municipal utility. As shown below, this formula will yield each 
customer's allotment of ARPA Funds:  

i. (Residential "Customer A" Arrearage Balance over 60 Days / All Residential 
Arrearages Over 60 Days) X ARPA Funds Received = Individual Customer 
Arrearage Reduction 

b. Finally, the budget language establishing this program states the following: 
i. Utilities must ensure residential customers eligible for this relief have the 

funding credited to their account as soon as possible and must reflect this relief 
on the soonest billing statement possible given the specific billing system 
utilized by the utility. Should the application of any assistance render a 
customer due a balance necessitating a cash refund payable to the customer, 
such assistance shall be proportionally reduced as to achieve a zero balance. 

6. Can we include multi-family residential accounts, even if they’re classified as commercial 
accounts? 

Consent Agenda - Page 34



COVID-19 ARPA SLFRF Municipal Utility Relief Program 
Frequently Asked Questions 

 

 

a. Residential multi-family dwellings - even if classified as commercial property/accounts - 
are eligible for this program if the forgiveness is passed along to the residential 
customer by the property owner(s). 

7. We understand any funds received are applicable based on a pro-rata share as proportion of the 
delinquent balance. We have a unique situation that over 80% of our delinquency is attributable 
to one account, a residential apartment complex that is many months in arrears. Is there a 
maximum relief or cap on how much relief a single account can receive under the program? 

a. The budget language establishing this program does not place a maximum cap on relief 
provided nor does the Interim Final Rule speak to a capped amount for relief. Because a 
residential apartment complex would include multiple residential households, it would 
be reasonable to infer that the large delinquency is attributable to multiple households 
comprising the one account. Therefore, on a residential household-by-household basis, 
we assume this amount would be much smaller. 

8. Can I assume that applications for ARPA funds should include inactive accounts, or is it just 
intended to only credit accounts with an active water account? 

a. Inactive accounts, accounts that are final or in collections may also be assisted provided 
that that such relief is applied to the portion of the final/in collections account that 
occurred/accrued between March 12, 2020, and August 31, 2021. 

9. Are taxes included as part of this? 
a. DHCD cannot make a definitive interpretation on this question and suggest that you 

consult with your local attorney for official guidance. The budget language establishing 
this program states: “Utilities may not direct any funds provided in this paragraph to 
new deposits, down payments, fees, late fees, interest charges, or penalties.” 

a.  

Consent Agenda - Page 35



Consent Agenda - Page 36



Consent Agenda - Page 37



Consent Agenda - Page 38



Consent Agenda - Page 39



Consent Agenda - Page 40



Consent Agenda - Page 41



Consent Agenda - Page 42





RESOLUTION #22-11 

FY22 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of Supervisors that the following budget 

amendment for the General Government and hereby is made for the period of July 1, 2021 

through June 30, 2022.  This resolution will amend the budget to include federal funding from 

COVID-19 ARPA Utility Relief.  

 

FUND # 100 

GENERAL FUND 

  

REVENUE 

 Fund 100 Federal Revenue 

  COVID-19 Relief Funding    $83,476.72 

  Total Revenues     $83,476.72 

 

EXPENDITURE 

 Fund 100 General Government    $83,476.72 

 Total Expenditures      $83,476.72 

 

 

 

________________________ 

Susan B. Seward, Chairman 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Richard Douglas, Clerk 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

 

Adopted this 17th day of February, 2022. 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda – Page 44 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Recognition #3.01 
 
Subject:    Waverly Pool Request for Assistance  
 Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation Association (SCYARA) 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   Mr. William Ricks, on behalf of the Sussex County Youth and Adult Recreation 
Association, will present a request for assistance for improvements to the Waverly Pool.  
 
 
Attachment:   None 
   
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:     At the discretion of the Board of Supervisors  
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
             

             

             

              

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
W. Jones ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
       (Tie Breaker) 
                                             
 
 
 
 

Recognition – Page 1 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.01 
 
Subject:   Housing Oversight Board 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17, 2022    
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:  Tanisha Green submitted her letter of resignation from the Housing Oversight Board.  
The purpose of the Board is to provide fair and equitable application oversight of the Pocahontas 
Community Improvement Grant, Phases I and II, and the Regional Urgent Needs Grant Program 
as required under the County’s contract with the funding agency, Virginia Department of Housing 
and Community Development.  The criteria for Mrs. Green’s replacement is as follows: 

 Active member of community, already have an existing relationship with many of the 
neighbors, and having been an active participant in organizing the neighborhood during 
the Planning Grant process.  They should understand the intent of the program and be 
able to assist the County in communicating with project area residents to assure they fully 
understand the program.  

 
Recommendation: Per the Board’s discussion. 
 
Attachment:     Resignation Letter 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   None 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 
 
 
 

Appointments – Page 1 



January 5, 2022 
 
Sussex County  
Housing Department 
P.O. Box 1397 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
Please be advised that this letter is written to inform you of my decision to resign from my 
position on the Housing Oversight Board, effective January 10, 2022. 
 
My other commitments have become too great for me to be able to fulfill the requirements of 
my position on the board, and I feel it is best for me to make room for someone with the time 
to devote to the job.  
 
It has been a pleasure being a part of the Housing Oversight Board. I am grateful for all we have 
accomplished over the years, and I have no doubt that the board will continue to make even 
greater successes in the future. 
 
If I can be of any assistance during the time it will take to fill the position, please don’t hesitate 
to ask. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Tanisha Green 

 
Tanisha Green 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appointments – Page 2 

 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Appointments #5.02 
 

Subject:  Nominations for Appointments to the Board of Equalization 
 

Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
 

 
Summary:  This item has been on previous Board agendas.  County Administrator Douglas stated 
that there were a number of individuals interested to consider. 
 

The four members currently serving on the Board of Equalization are: (1) Ms. Antoinette Jones, 
13174 Shands Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882; (2) Mr. Dennis Mason, 407 East Main Street, 
Wakefield, VA 23888; (3) Ms. Carla Mayes, 28237 Petersburg Road, Waverly, VA 23890; and, (4) 
Mr. Jerry Parham, 33117 Sussex Drive, Waverly, VA 23890. 
 
Appointments and qualifications are included in the Board packet. 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment 
by the Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization. 
 

Attachments: § 58.1-3374 Appointments and §58.1-3374 Qualifications of members; vacancies 
 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:  That the Board recommends an individual(s) for nomination for appointment by the 
Circuit Court Judge to fill the vacancy and set the terms for the Board of Equalization. 
 

             

             

              

 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 

Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 
 
 
 
 
 

Appointments – Page 3 



Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 32. Real Property Tax 
Article 14. Boards of Equalization
   
§ 58.1-3370. Appointment
  
A. The circuit court having jurisdiction within each city and each county other than those
counties operating under § 58.1-3371 shall, in each tax year immediately following the year a
general reassessment or annual or biennial assessment is conducted in such city or county,
appoint for such city or county a board of equalization of real estate assessments, unless such
county or city has a permanent board of equalization appointed according to law. In addition, at
the request of the local governing body, the circuit court may appoint alternate members as
provided in subsection B of § 58.1-3373, and the provisions of that subsection shall apply mutatis
mutandis.
  
B. The term of any board of equalization appointed under the authority of this section shall
expire one year after the effective date of the assessment for which it was appointed. However, if
a taxpayer applies to the commissioner of the revenue or other official performing the duties
imposed on commissioners of the revenue for relief from a real property tax assessment prior to
the expiration of the board of equalization's term, and the term of the board of equalization
expires prior to a final determination on such application for relief, and the taxpayer advises the
circuit court that he wishes to appeal the determination to the board of equalization, then the
circuit court may reappoint the board of equalization to hear and act on such appeal.
  
Code 1950, § 58-895; 1975, c. 575; 1979, c. 577; 1983, c. 304; 1984, cc. 273, 675; 1991, c. 240;
2014, c. 19;2018, c. 604.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.
  

1 1/15/2022 12:00:00 AM

/vacode/58.1-3371/
/vacode/58.1-3373/
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0019
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?141+ful+CHAP0019
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?181+ful+CHAP0604
Appointments - Page 4



Code of Virginia 
Title 58.1. Taxation 
Subtitle III. Local Taxes 
Chapter 32. Real Property Tax 
Article 14. Boards of Equalization
   
§ 58.1-3374. Qualifications of members; vacancies
  
Except as provided in § 58.1-3371 or 58.1-3373, every board of equalization shall be composed of
not less than three members nor more than five members or the number of local election districts
in the locality, whichever is greater. In addition to such regular members, at the request of the
local governing body, the circuit court for any locality shall appoint one alternate member in the
case of a board with less than five members, and two alternate members in the case of a board
with five or more members. The qualifications, terms and compensation of alternate members
shall be the same as those of regular members. A regular member when he knows he will be
absent from or will have to abstain from any proceeding at a meeting shall notify the chairman of
the board of equalization at least 24 hours prior to the meeting of such fact. The chairman may
select an alternate to serve in the absent or abstaining member's place and the records of the
board shall so note. Such alternate member may vote on any proceeding in which a regular
member is absent or abstains.
  
All members of every board of equalization, including alternate members, shall be residents, a
majority of whom shall be freeholders, in the county or city for which they are to serve and shall
be selected from the citizens of the county or city. Appointments to the board of equalization
shall be broadly representative of the community. Thirty percent of the members of the board
shall be commercial or residential real estate appraisers, other real estate professionals, builders,
developers, or legal or financial professionals, and at least one such member shall sit in all cases
involving commercial, industrial or multi-family residential property, unless waived by the
taxpayer. No member of the board of assessors shall be eligible for appointment to the board of
equalization for the same reassessment. In order to be eligible for appointment, each prospective
member of such board shall attend and participate in the basic course of instruction given by the
Department of Taxation under § 58.1-206. In addition, at least once in every four years of service
on a board of equalization, each member of a board of equalization shall take continuing
education instruction provided by the Tax Commissioner pursuant to § 58.1-206. Any vacancy
occurring on any board of equalization shall be filled for the unexpired term by the authority
making the original appointment.
  
On any board or panel thereof considering appeals of commercial or multi-family residential
property in a locality with a population exceeding 100,000, 30 percent of the members of such
board or panel shall be commercial or multi-family residential real estate appraisers who are
licensed and certified by the Virginia Real Estate Appraiser Board to serve as general real estate
appraisers, other commercial or multi-family real estate professionals or licensed commercial or
multi-family real estate brokers, builders, developers, active or retired members of the Virginia
State Bar, or other legal or financial professionals whose area of practice requires or required
knowledge of the valuation of property, real estate transactions, building costs, accounting,
finance, or statistics. For the purposes of this section, commercial or multi-family residential
property shall be defined as any property that is either operated as or zoned for use as
commercial, industrial or multi-family residential rental property.
  

1 1/15/2022 12:00:00 AM

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3371/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3373/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-206/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-206/
Appointments - Page 5



Code 1950, § 58-899; 1979, c. 577; 1983, c. 304; 1984, c. 675; 1995, c. 24;2003, c. 1036;2009, c. 25;
2010, c. 552;2011, c. 10;2013, c. 197;2016, c. 38.
  
The chapters of the acts of assembly referenced in the historical citation at the end of this
section(s) may not constitute a comprehensive list of such chapters and may exclude chapters
whose provisions have expired.
  

2 1/15/2022 12:00:00 AM

http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?951+ful+CHAP0024
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?951+ful+CHAP0024
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP1036
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?031+ful+CHAP1036
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0025
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?091+ful+CHAP0025
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0552
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?101+ful+CHAP0552
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0010
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?111+ful+CHAP0010
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0197
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?131+ful+CHAP0197
http://lis.virginia.gov/cgi-bin/legp604.exe?161+ful+CHAP0038
Appointments - Page 6



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.03 
 
Subject: SSA Alternate At-Large Position 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   This item has been on previous Board agendas.  Staff was advised by Mr. Frank Irving, 
of Sussex Service Authority, that there was a vacancy for an unexpired term on the Sussex Service 
Authority for an alternate in the At-Large position.   
 
The position is for any citizen who resides in Sussex County (prefer them to be in our service area, 
but not mandatory) and is not an elected official.  The position is currently held by Sam Harrison 
but he has moved out of Sussex County and is no longer eligible.  He will continue to serve until 
his replacement has been appointed.   
 
This position will serve through December 2022 at which time they can be renewed for another 
four-year term. 
 
Recommendation That Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term of the alternate 
in the At-Large position on the Sussex Service Authority Board, through expiring December 31, 
2022 at which time a reappointment for a four-year term will need to be made. 
 
Attachment:   None 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:    That Board makes an appointment to fill the unexpired term of the alternate in the 
At-Large position on the Sussex Service Authority Board, through expiring December 31, 2022 at 
which time a reappointment for a four-year term will need to be made. 
  
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 

Appointments – Page 7                                              



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.04 
 
Subject: Appointment of the Department of Social Services Advisory Board 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   This item was tabled from previous Board of Supervisors regular meetings agenda. 
 
The Board discussed contacting members of the former DSS Administrative Board in regards to 
their interest in serving on the Advisory Board.  There was also the Board’s general consensus to 
have representation from each district.  A list of names was also provided by Mr. Hagy, the 
Director of Social Services. 
 
Vice Chairman Jones has recommended Ms. Viola Brown, 119 Williams Lane, Wakefield, Virginia 
23888, to be appointed as Wakefield District representative.  Supervisor Fly has recommended 
Ms. Leah Brantley, 9531 Jerusalem Plank Road, Waverly, Virginia 23890. 
 
Three members—Stony Creek, Wakefield and Waverly Districts—were interested contingent 
upon further information provided. 
 
Recommendation:  none  
 
Attachments: Biographies of Ms. Viola Brown and Ms. Leah Brantley 
   
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:     
  
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 

Appointments – Page 8 



 Board/Commission Application Form 

February 2022 - Page 1 of 2 

 

Application Form for 

Sussex County Boards and Commissions 
 

 
Application for:  ____ New Appointment ____ Reappointment 

 

Board or Commission Applying for:             

 

NAME:                

 

Home Address:               

 

City/Town:          Zip Code:  __________  Home Phone:__________   

 

Work Phone:  _______________    Email address:            

 

Occupation:  ______________________  Employer:  _________________________________________________ 

 

Employer Address:               

 

Previous Work Experience:             

               

               

Volunteer experience (List and Describe):  :           

               

               

Do you currently hold any elected or appointed office in Sussex County?  ____ Yes  ___ No 

If yes, please list the office:              

Have you ever held any elected or appointed office in Sussex County in the past?  ___ Yes ____ No 

If yes, please list the office:              

If appointed, can you attend the regularly scheduled date and time of Board or Commission meeting? __Yes __ No 

Do you have conflict of interest or personal connection to the Board of Commission?  ___ Yes ____ No 

If yes, please explain/describe:              

Highest degree of education earned:             

School attended:        Field of Study:        

Do you have any relatives currently employed by Sussex County?  ___ Yes ____ No 

If yes, please explain/describe:              

X

Department of Social Services Advisory Board

Viola D. Brown

119 Williams Lane

Wakefield

23888

N/A

N/A

Charityzo1004@gmail.com

Cell Phone: 757-758-4998

Retired

N/A

N/A

Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN) - Commonwealth of Virginia Eastern State Hospital

Central State Hospital; Southside Virginia Training

42 Years of Services

Volunteer at Church; Mobile Food Bank Southeastern Virginia

X

X

X

X

2 Years Post Graduate

Nursing

X

Dispatcher 

Board of Elections - Poll Worker

Appointments - Page 9



 Board/Commission Application Form 

February 2022 - Page 2 of 2 

 

__ Accounting  __ EMS __ Information 

System 

__ Real Estate 

__ Administration __ Engineering __ Inspections      

__ Auditing __ Finance/Banking __ Landscaping Law    

__ Budgeting __ Fire Service __ Law    

__ Construction __ Healthcare __ Planning      

__ Contracting __ Housing  __ Public Relations      

__ Education __ Housing 

Inspections 

__ Purchasing      

 

 

Please return completed form to: Mrs. Shilton R. Butts 

Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

     Deputy Clerk to the Board 

Post Office 1397 (mailing) 

20135 Princeton Road (physical) 

Sussex, Virginia 23884 (mailing) 

Stony Creek, Virginia 23882 (physical) 

 

If you have any questions, please call 434 246 1000.  Thanks. 

Staff Use Only 

 

Recommended by:       

 

District:          

X

Vice Chairman Wayne O. Jones

Wakefield

Appointments - Page 10



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.01 
 
Subject: Sheriff Mobile Data Terminal (MDT) Lease Agreement 
 
Board Meeting Date:   February 17 2022  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Sheriff Giles is requesting consideration of approval of lease agreement with Dell for 
the three-year lease of 25 new Mobile Data Terminals (MDTs) for the Sheriff’s Office Patrol 
Deputies.  
 
The Sheriff is requesting to fund the first year’s lease payment from within the Sheriff’s 
Department operational budget.  He is requesting the funds for the first payment to come from 
ARPA funds the County awarded Animal Services in lieu of Animal Services purchasing the K9 unit 
a 2018 Ford Explorer valued at $30,000.00 from the Sheriff’s office.  For the additional two years’ 
payments, the Sheriff is requesting the funds be appropriated to his Field Operations 
Equipment/Lease Purchase budget line item #51100-1253-512-510.  Currently, our MDT’s are 
nine years old.  He advised that the current MDT’s are failing in the field and having major issues 
due to the technology is obsolete now. 
 
Recommendation:    
 
Attachments: Letter from Sheriff Giles, Quote from Dell for Lease Agreement, Additional 

Quotes for Procurement Purposes,  
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 
 
 

Action Items – Page 1 



Action Items - Page 2



Action Items - Page 3



Action Items - Page 4



Action Items - Page 5



Action Items - Page 6



Action Items - Page 7



Action Items - Page 8



Action Items - Page 9



Action Items - Page 10



Action Items - Page 11



Action Items - Page 12



Action Items - Page 13



Action Items - Page 14



Action Items - Page 15



Action Items - Page 16



Action Items - Page 17



Action Items - Page 18



Action Items - Page 19



Action Items - Page 20





BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Action Items #6.02 
 
Subject: Electronic Summons System Fee Ordinance (Ordinance #22-01) 
 
Board Meeting Date:   February 17 2022  
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:    Sheriff Giles is requesting consideration of an ordinance that would allow for the 
assessment of an additional $5 as part of costs in each criminal or traffic case in the district or 
circuit courts of the county.  This revenue would be designated for the implementation and 
maintenance of an electronic summons system.  A public notice has been advertised to allow for 
the consideration of this ordinance, and the draft ordinance was prepared by the County 
Attorney. 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval of Ordinance #22-01 
 
Attachment(s): Public notice and draft electronic summons system fee ordinance 
 
============================================================================== 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    W. Jones ___ ___  
 
Futrell   ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 

White  ___ ___ 
                                                         (Tie Breaker) 
 
 

Action Items – Page 22 



SUSSEX COUNTY 

ORDINANCE #22-01 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ASSESS AN ADDITIONAL SUM OF FIVE DOLLARS ($5.00) AS 

PART OF THE COSTS IN EACH CRIMINAL OR TRAFFIC CASE IN THE DISTRICT 

OR CIRCUIT COURTS OF SUSSEX COUNTY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION AND 

MAINTENANCE OF AN ELECTRONIC SUMMONS SYSTEM 

WHEREAS, Va. Code Section 17.1-279.1 allows for the governing body of any locality 

to impose a fee not to exceed five dollars ($5.00) as part of the costs for each criminal and traffic 

case in district or circuit courts; and  

WHEREAS, such fee must be used to fund software, hardware, and associated equipment 

costs for the implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system; and  

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors desires to assess said “Electronic 

Summons System” fee; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is ordained by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, 

Virginia, that the ordinance establishing an Electronic Summons System Assessment is hereby 

adopted as follows:  

In addition to all other fees imposed by law, there is hereby imposed in each criminal or 

traffic case in the Sussex District and Circuit Courts, where the defendant is charged with a 

violation of any such statute or ordinance by a local law-enforcement agency, a fee of five dollars 

($5.00) as authorized by Section 17.1-279.1 of the Code of Virginia.  

Such assessment shall be ordered as part of court costs collected by the Clerk of Court, 

who shall remit the fees to the Treasurer of Sussex County. The Treasurer shall hold such funds 

subject to appropriation by the Board of Supervisors to the Sheriff’s Office of Sussex County 

to be used solely to fund software, hardware, and associated equipment costs for the 

implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system.   

The assessment provided for in this section shall be in addition to all other costs prescribed 

by law for such purposes by the Code of Virginia, as it may be amended.  

This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.  

Adopted by the Sussex Board of Supervisors this 17th day of February, 2022. 

           By:  

      

             ________________________ 

       Susan B. Seward, Chairman 

        Board of Supervisors 

        County of Sussex, Virginia 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board        Action Items – Page 23 



SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

At its regular meeting on February 17, 2022, the Board of Supervisors shall consider adoption of 

an ORDINANCE TO ASSESS AN ADDITIONAL SUM OF FIVE DOLLARS ($5.00) AS PART 

OF THE COSTS IN EACH CRIMINAL OR TRAFFIC CASE IN THE DISTRICT OR CIRCUIT 

COURTS OF SUSSEX COUNTY FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION AND MAINTENANCE OF 

AN ELECTRONIC SUMMONS SYSTEM. 

 

This ordinance, authorized by Va. Code §17.1-279.1 allows the County Board of Supervisors to 

assess in each criminal or traffic case in the Sussex District and Circuit Courts, where the defendant 

is charged with a violation of any such statute or ordinance by a local law-enforcement agency, a 

sum not in excess of five dollars ($5.00). Such assessment shall be ordered as part of court costs 

collected by the Clerk of Court, who shall remit the fees to the Treasurer of Sussex County. The 

Treasurer shall hold such funds subject to appropriation by the Board of Supervisors to the 

Sheriff’s Office of Sussex County to be used solely to fund software, hardware, and associated 

equipment costs for the implementation and maintenance of an electronic summons system.   

 

A full copy of the proposed ordinance may be obtained on the Sussex County website at: 

www.sussexcountyva.gov.  Questions may be directed to the Richard, County Administrator, at 

rdouglas@sussexcountyva.gov. 

 

 

 
 
 

Action Items - Page 24



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Unfinished Business #8.01 
 
Subject:    Solar Farm Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   A public hearing was held at the January regular meeting to receive public input on 
proposed amendments to the county’s comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance, related to 
revised solar farm requirements.  These amendments are primarily related to minimum and 
maximum size and other siting requirements identified in the attached staff report.  The Planning 
Commission voted to recommend approval of the comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance 
amendments at its January regular meeting, and staff recommends approval as well.  Staff will 
present an overview of these amendments prior to Board consideration. 
 
 
Attachment:   Staff Report on Proposed Modifications to the 2004-2005 Comprehensive Plan of 
Sussex County and Zoning Amendments in Consideration of Solar and Battery Storage Facilities  
   
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:     Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to the county’s 
comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance related to solar and battery storage facilities as 
presented in the attached staff report. 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
             

             

             

              

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
W. Jones ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
       (Tie Breaker) 

  

Unfinished Business - Page 1



Unfinished Business - Page 2



Unfinished Business - Page 3



Unfinished Business - Page 4



Unfinished Business - Page 5



Unfinished Business - Page 6



Unfinished Business - Page 7



Unfinished Business - Page 8



Unfinished Business - Page 9



Unfinished Business - Page 10



Unfinished Business - Page 11



Unfinished Business - Page 12



Unfinished Business - Page 13



Unfinished Business - Page 14



Unfinished Business - Page 15



Unfinished Business - Page 16



Unfinished Business - Page 17



Unfinished Business - Page 18



Unfinished Business - Page 19



Unfinished Business - Page 20



Unfinished Business - Page 21



Unfinished Business - Page 22



Unfinished Business - Page 23



Unfinished Business - Page 24



Unfinished Business - Page 25



Unfinished Business - Page 26



Unfinished Business - Page 27



Unfinished Business - Page 28



Unfinished Business - Page 29



Unfinished Business - Page 30



Unfinished Business - Page 31



Unfinished Business - Page 32



Unfinished Business - Page 33



Unfinished Business - Page 34



Unfinished Business - Page 35



Unfinished Business - Page 36



Unfinished Business - Page 37



Unfinished Business - Page 38



Unfinished Business - Page 39



Unfinished Business - Page 40



Unfinished Business - Page 41



Unfinished Business - Page 42



Unfinished Business - Page 43



Unfinished Business - Page 44



Unfinished Business - Page 45



Unfinished Business - Page 46



Unfinished Business - Page 47



Unfinished Business - Page 48



Unfinished Business - Page 49



Unfinished Business - Page 50



Unfinished Business - Page 51



Unfinished Business - Page 52



Unfinished Business - Page 53



Unfinished Business - Page 54



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item: Unfinished Business #8.02 
 
Subject:    Redistricting Mapping Update 
 
Board Meeting Date:  February 17 2022 
   
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   The redistricting mapping committee met at the Crater PDC office in Petersburg on 
February 11 to review various redistricting options for the consideration of the Board of 
Supervisors.  The committee will provide an update on the status of redistricting options for the 
full board’s consideration.  Once the board decides on a potential redistricting map, a public 
hearing will be scheduled as a next step. 
 
 
Attachment:   None 
   
============================================================================== 
 
ACTION:     None anticipated 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
             

             

             

              

              

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
D. Jones ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 
 
W. Jones ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 
       (Tie Breaker) 
                                             
 
 
 

Unfinished Business - Page 55



  


	#1 2 17 2022 agenda
	#2.01-1 1 27 22 Rescheduled Regular BOS meeting minutes 1 27 22
	#2.03-5 Consent Agenda 
	#2.03 Treasurer Rpt & Financial Update
	#2.04-1 SW Cover
	#2.04-10 DSS Cover
	#2.04-11 DSS January - BP Report
	#2.04-12 DSS January - FS Report
	#2.04-2 January 2022 Tonnage Report
	#2.04-3 PD Cover
	#2.04-4 PD January Monthly BOS Report
	#2.04-5 PD December Monthly BOS Report (1)
	#2.04-6 BD Cover
	#2.04-7 January 2022 Report
	#2.04-8 SD Cover
	#2.04-9 SD Monthly report
	#2.05-1 ARPA Utility Relief Funds Budget Amendment (00000002)
	#2.05-2 081 - Sussex County Sussex Service Authority Town of Waverly81811

	#2.05-4 Municipial Utility
	#3.01-1 Waverly Pool Request for Assistance
	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-1 Appointment request.Green replacement
	#5.01-2 Board Resignation Letter-HOB
	#5.02-1 Appointments -Board of Equalization
	#5.02-2 BoE
	#5.02-3
	#5.03-1 SSA Alternate At-Lrg Position
	#5.04-1 DSS Advisory Board
	#5.04-2 Application Form for

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 Sheriff's MDT Lease
	#6.01-2 mdt
	#6.02-1 Sheriff's Electronic Ticket Ordinance (00000003)
	#6.02-2 Sussex Electronic Summons System Fee Ordinance DRAFT 1.5.22
	#6.02-3 SHERIFF Sussex Electronic Summons System Fee Public Notice

	#8 Unfinished Business
	#8.01-1 Unfinished Business (00000002)
	#8.01-2 BOS public hearing solar amendments COMP
	#8.01-3 BOS public hearing solar amendments ZO
	#8.02-1 Redistricting Mapping Update




